GATESHEAD METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL

CARE, HEALTH AND WELLBEING OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MEETING

Wednesday, 10 May 2023

PRESENT: Councillor W Dick (Chair)

Councillor(s): M Goldsworthy, I Patterson, J Wallace, J Gibson, P Diston, D Robson, S Potts, D Weatherley and

A Wintcher

IN ATTENDANCE: Yvonne Probert (Healthwatch)

APOLOGIES: Councillor(s): J Green, R Mullen, B Goldsworthy, M Hall and

J McCoid

CHW40 MINUTES OF LAST MEETING

RESOLVED - That the minutes of the meeting held on 18 April 2023 be

approved as a correct record.

CHW41 GATESHEAD HEALTH NHS TRUST - QUALITY ACCOUNTS 2022 - 23

The Committee received a presentation from Jane Conroy, Head of Midwifery, and Drew Rayner, Deputy Chief Nurse, on the Gateshead Health NHS Trust, Quality Accounts 2022-23.

Based on the Committee's knowledge of the work of the Trust during 2022-23, the Committee was able to comment as follows:

Quality Priorities for 2023-24

OSC is supportive of the Trust's proposed Quality Priorities for Improvement.

Progress Against Quality Priorities for 2022-23

OSC expressed its thanks to all the Trust's staff and volunteers for its excellent work in continuing to make some real improvements in quality and safety whilst still facing significant challenges. Areas to particularly note were around the increase in the number of nursing staff and overseas nurses as well as an increase in volunteer numbers. Although there is further work continuing in this area, progress was good.

The Trust has carried out some good work around patients as partners in improvement, holding co-design improvement workshops and working collaboratively with ISB / Gateshead Place to establish a Patient Forum. The Trust has maintained its focus on the health and wellbeing of staff particularly focusing on enhanced staff offers during very busy periods and achieved the Better Health at

Work Silver Award during the year. OSC also noted it is working towards the Gold award.

In addition, the Trust has in place an overarching Equality and Diversity Objections action plan for Workforce Disability Equality Standard (WDES) and Workforce Race Equality Standard (WRES) and has trained 9 Cultural Ambassadors to be utilised during disciplinary processes where BME members of staff are involved.

The Trust has taken forward work to maximise safety in maternity services and has a fully staffed maternity unit. The Trust has made good progress in terms of improving the experiences of service users with Learning Disabilities and Mental Health needs and acknowledged that further work is continuing around clinical coding.

The Trust has worked towards, and will continue to promote, a just, open and restorative culture across the organisation. There has been dedicated Patient Safety Incident Response Framework (PSIRF) sessions held and work will continue in this area as part of the 2023/24 priorities.

Maternity Service

OSC sought clarification as to the reasons why an improvement plan was being developed for the Trust's Maternity Services. OSC was informed that this was following Maternity Services generally coming under a lot of scrutiny across the country with various reports being published in relation to other Trusts that contained a number of actions to be taken forward. A new three-year plan was produced therefore and the Trust has recognised the need to have these pieces of work in one place to facilitate good strategic oversight and to demonstrate what the Trust is doing in this area.

OSC also enquired about the CQC inspection carried out in February 2023 and it was noted that the Trust is awaiting the outcome of the inspection. OSC asked to be updated on the outcome in due course as part of its work programme.

Volunteers

OSC queried to what extent the growth in volunteers reflected staff shortages and cuts in funding. OSC was informed that, in times of pressure, the Trust recognises that there would not be enough resources to offer additional support to patients and staff without the help and input of volunteers. The OSC was also informed that volunteers can help in terms of recruitment and retention with some people coming into a career in nursing through the volunteering route.

Working with patients as partners in improvement

OSC queried how the Trust is ensuring it hears the voice of those with the most difficult of circumstances and those unlikely to attend engagement workshops. OSC was informed that this is included within wider health inequality work, where Trust representatives are proactively going out to meet patients in their own communities. There are also a number of mechanisms for patient and family feedback which is used to inform service change.

Health and Wellbeing of Staff

OSC sought to understand how the cost of living crisis has been taken into account in terms of the wellbeing of staff at the Trust. The Trust continues to support its staff and is aiming to tailor its staff health and wellbeing initiatives further so that staff can get the most from them.

CQC Inspection Outcomes

OSC noted that the Care Quality Commission has not taken enforcement action against Gateshead Health NHS Foundation Trust during 2022-23.

RESOLVED - That the information be noted and thanks of the OSC be passed on to colleagues in the Trust.

CHW42 CUMBRIA, NORTHUMBERLAND, TYNE AND WEAR NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - QUALITY ACCOUNTS 2022-23

The Committee received a presentation from Bill Kay, Group Nurse Director, Jo Phillipson, Head of Commissioning and Quality Assurance and Rebecca Tait, Associate Director, Central Locality Community Services, on the CNTW Quality Accounts 2022-23.

Based on the OSC's knowledge of the work of the Trust during 2022-23 the Committee was able to comment as follows:

Quality Priorities for 2023-24

OSC is supportive of the Trust's proposed Quality Priorities for Improvement.

Progress Against Quality Priorities for 2022-23

OSC expressed its thanks to all the Trust's staff and volunteers for its excellent work in continuing to make some real improvements in quality and safety whilst still facing significant challenges. The Trust has faced a substantial increase in referrals, with pressures on Adults, and Children and Young People's Services (CYPS). However, the Trust has reduced the number waiting for CYPS for more than 18 weeks in the last quarter of 2022/23.

Work is ongoing to manage wait times with the roll out of a new '4 weeks to treatment' national programme. The Trust continues to regularly review wait times across the organisation. Work is also underway with system partners in Gateshead and Newcastle to better understand the reasons for the significant increase in referrals. In addition, there are initiatives in place with the Toby Henderson Trust to reduce the number of people on waiting lists.

Hadrian Clinic - CQC Inspection

The OSC sought further information regarding the focussed inspection of Hadrian's Clinic in December 2022. OSC was informed that 2 out of 3 wards at the Clinic were inspected and that there were a number of positive findings, including that staff assessed risk well and acted on risks; that patient feedback was positive and there

were enough staff to meet patient need; that good safety systems and good interagency safeguarding processes were in place.

It was also reported that some areas for improvement were identified and, in particular, that the Trust must ensure the premises are fit for purpose, have suitably qualified and experienced staff to support all admissions including training in specialist autism and learning disabilities. The inspection also identified the need for all staff to be aware of patient's risks and risk management plans. The Trust should also ensure patients have access to a full multi-disciplinary team.

OSC was informed that, in terms of risk management plans, all staff have access to plans and this action point related to agency staff in particular. OSC were reassured that a new system is in place whereby all agency staff are given access to risk management plans during their induction. OSC was informed that the Trust recognises the need to broaden the service offer to include other staff and there is a proposal to look at Advanced Level Practitioners to develop the offer to service users.

The Trust confirmed that an environmental checklist has been carried out and remedial work undertaken, although it was acknowledged that more needs to be done. There are plans to relocate the clinic to St Nicholas' Hospital site from July 2024 once extension work has been carried out. This will ensure consolidation of services on a site managed by the CNTW site team. The new clinic will provide full ensuite provision and outdoor facilities, which is lacking at the Hadrian Clinic.

Agency Staff Reduction

OSC sought information around alternatives to the use of agency staff. OSC were informed that continuing efforts are being made by the Trust in terms of recruitment, retention and encouraging staff back to CNTW through improved training offers. An apprenticeship framework is in place to train nurses, with placement opportunities for students to encourage them to look at a career at CNTW.

Waiting Times

OSC sought further information on waiting times in terms of those waiting for diagnosis and those waiting for treatment. OSC was informed that waiting times for ADHD / ASD and memory services were lengthy as this is a diagnostic service. However, for adult mental health the waits are lower.

The '4 Week Treatment' programme aims to see the patient within a 4 week period. The Trust is also looking at mental health practitioners to be placed in GP Practices in order to increase the offer at the front door and create a more system wide approach.

OSC was informed that demand is outstripping supply and regular meetings are being held with Place colleagues to better understand the increase in referrals.

OSC requested that Gateshead specific figures be provided for future Quality Accounts, as distinct from Newcastle Gateshead figures.

CQC Inspection Outcomes

OSC noted	that the Care	Quality Com	mission ha	is not taker	enforcement	action
against CN7	ΓW NHS Foul	ndation Trust	during 202	22-23.		

RESOLVED -	That the information be noted and thanks of the OSC be
	passed on to colleagues in the Trust.

Chair	 	